
P:\Public Works\Agendas\2018\PSC 08-27-18 Agenda.doc 

 

AGENDA FOR THE CITY OF BARABOO               

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  

 
 

Date and Time: Monday, August 27, 2018 –  1:00 P.M.  

Location: Committee Room at Municipal Building – 101 South Blvd, Baraboo, WI 

Members Noticed: Phil Wedekind, Tom Kolb, Michael Plautz 

Others Noticed:      Administrator E. Geick, Mayor M. Palm, Police Chief M. Schauf, Fire Chief K. 

Stieve, Attorney E. Truman, T. Pinion, W. Peterson, T. Gilman, Linda Luck, 

Kathy Alvin, Darren Jorgenson, Grant Slayton, Brian Bemis, Buck Sweeney, Jim 

Smith, and Library.   

 

1. Call to Order 
a. Note compliance with the Open Meeting Law. 

b. Roll call. 

c. Approve agenda. 

d. Approve minutes of July 23, 2018 Public Safety Committee meeting. 

 

 

2. New Business 
a. Consider revising the Official Traffic Map to prohibit parking on the east side of Walnut Street 

between Parkway and a point 130 south of Elm Street.  

 

 

b. Consider revising the Official Traffic Map to prohibit parking west side of Moore Street from a point 

120 feet south of South Blvd to a point 220 feet south of South Blvd. 

 

 

c. Consider revising the Official Traffic Map to prohibit parking on both sides of Summit Street from a 

point 100 feet south of 10th Avenue to 10th Avenue. 

 

 

d. Consider Agreement with Delton Fire Department to allow their use of the City’s Container Based 

Training Prop on Briar Street. 

 

 

e. Review and recommendation for revising the City’s ordinance regulating loud and unnecessary noise. 

 

 

f. Review and recommendation to close Oak Street, between 2nd and 3rd Streets, for a Special Event – 

“Foo Fest”, on September 8th from 2 PM to 10:30 PM, sponsored by Brothers on Oak (as a fundraiser 

for the Baraboo Fire Fighters’ Association). 

 

 

g. Review and recommendation of a proposed Agreement with Driftless Glen Distillery, LLC regarding 

metering their wastewater discharge from the Driftless Glen Distillery at 300 Water Street. 

 

 

h. Review and recommend awarding construction contract for DPW Pole Building. 

 

 

i. Review and approval of monthly Billing Adjustments/Credits for Sewer and Water Customers for July 

2018. 

 

Members noticed must notify Committee Chairman 
Wedekind at least 24 hours before the meeting if they 
will not be able to attend.  



P:\Public Works\Agendas\2018\PSC 08-27-18 Agenda.doc 

 

 

3. Reports 

a. Utility Superintendent’s Report 

b. Street Superintendent’s Report 

c. Police Chief’s Report  

d. Fire Chief’s Report 

 

 

4. Adjournment 

 

       Phil Wedekind, Chairperson 
 

 
 Agenda Prepared by Kris Jackson                                                       

 Agenda Posted by Kris Jackson August 22, 2018 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act, that requires the meeting or 
materials at the meeting to be in an accessible location or format, should contact the Municipal Clerk (135 Fourth Street or phone 355-2700) during regular business hours at 
least 48 hours before the meeting so that reasonable arrangements can be made to accommodate each request. 

 
It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the City of Baraboo, who are not members of the above 

Council, committee, commission, or board, may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather information.  However, no formal action will be taken by any 
governmental body at the above stated meeting, other than the Council, committee, commission, or board identified in the caption of this notice. 

FOR INFORMATION ONLY, NOT TO BE PUBLISHED 



P:\Public Works\Minutes\2018 Minutes\07-23-18 Minutes.doc 

Minutes of the Public Safety Committee Meeting – July 23, 2018 
 
Members Present:  Phil Wedekind and Mike Plautz, and Tom Kolb. Others Present: Ed Geick, Chief Schauf, Chief Stieve, 
Attorney Truman, Tom Pinion, Wade Peterson, Tony Gilman, Daniel Zech, Gary Meeker, Buck Sweeney, Jim Smith, Nancy 
Mistele, Renee Bemus, Tom Fitzwilliams, and Ben Bromley.  
 
Call to Order - Committee Chairman Phil Wedekind called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. at the City Hall Committee Room, 
101 South Blvd., Baraboo, Wisconsin. Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was noted. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by 
Plautz to approve the agenda as posted. Motion carried unanimously. It was moved by Plautz, seconded by Kolb approve the 
minutes of the June 11, 2018 meeting. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

New Business 
a. Consider revising parking regulations on Ash Street between Water Street and 1st Street. (Daniel Zech) – Engineer Pinion 

presented the background for the request. He said currently the 2-hr parking extends from the Baraboo River to Water 

Streets, it then leap frogs one block, and then goes from 1st to 4th. He said that the revision would be Ash Street from the 

Baraboo River to 4th Street on both sides of the street. Kolb moved to approve. Daniel Zech said that there is a sign that 

states no parking from 2 a.m. until 6 a.m., but it is never enforced. Plautz seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

b. Review and recommendation for revising the City’s ordinance regarding Special Events – Attorney Truman presented the 

background on the issue. She said that the current ordinance is extremely vague. She said that anytime there is any event on 

public or private property, it is considered a special event and a license has to be obtained. Truman said that the City does 

not want to regulate everything that happens on private properties. Truman said one of the biggest changes to the proposed 

revision is to change the definition of what constitutes a special event. She said that there are new clarifications in the 

proposed ordinance; one is that a special event might not just take place on one day. She stated that another proposed 

clarification the two different costs associated with special events. The appeals process was discussed. After a lengthy 

discussion, Plautz moved, Kolb seconded to recommend the proposed revisions to the City’s ordinance regarding Sp0ecial 

Events as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

c. Review and recommendation for revising the City’s ordinance regulating loud and unnecessary noise – Attorney Truman 

presented the proposed ordinance revisions. She said that she did work on the revisions with the Police Chief. She said that 

the Chief suggested that no noise permits between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:30 a.m. be granted. Wedekind asked what 

would be done with the Fair Association; Truman said that is something that would have to be discussed. Truman said at this 

time there is no fee associated it the permit; however, the Committee could consider changing a fee. It was moved by Kolb, 

seconded by Plautz to bring proposed revisions back to the Committee in August for possible recommendation. Motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

d. Review and recommendation of Gary Meeker’s request for a second driveway to their single-family residential property at 

1018 3rd Street – Gary Meeker stated that he would request to install the second driveway that would be blacktop; however 

would like to have gravel until it is compacted. Wedekind said that he has been to the Committee twice and was denied. He 

stated that it is policy one driveway per lot, unless it is a corner lot. Wedekind feels if the permit were given to Meeker, it 

would set a precedence. Discussion of other second driveways took place, Pinion said that the last two times that this was 

before the Committee, Meeker was only asking for a curb cut; however, this time he is asking for an entire driveway, it was 

stated that this lot is oversized. Kolb felt he could be moved in terms of oversized lots, but not an automatic approval. Plautz 

feels that the oversize lot would be enough of an exception that it would set a precedence. Plautz moved to approve the 

request for a second driveway at 1018 3rd Street based on the Committee’s discussion of being an oversized lot. Kolb 

seconded the motion. Kolb feels that if the Committee is going to do this an oversize lot needs to be defined and the City 

needs to start enforcing driveways that exist that should not. Kolb asked Meeker how long he felt it would take to pave the 

driveway. Meeker said that he would do it as soon as he could; Kolb said he did not want it to sit all winter. Kolb asked for 

an amendment to the motion that the driveway is completed within 60 days of the start date. Plautz seconded the amended 

motion. Motion carried 2 to 1, Wedekind voting no. 

 

e. Discussion with Driftless Glen Distillery, LLC regarding wastewater discharge from the Driftless Glen Distillery at 300 

Water Street and how they propose to comply with the Subchapter III: Baraboo Sewer Utility in Chapter 1.3 of the City’s 

General Code of Ordinances – Pinion said this has been on ongoing discussion with Driftless Glen about high strength 

condition of the wastewater that they would like to discharge to the sanitary sewer. He said that they have made efforts to try 

to provide more consistent product. Pinion presented the Committee with the limits of the three parameters to safely 

discharge, along with the distillery’s proposed discharge the last time they ran a batch. Pinion said that with the numbers is 



P:\Public Works\Minutes\2018 Minutes\07-23-18 Minutes.doc 

has an effect on the operation of the Treatment Plant, so the distillery has been hauling it off site. He said looking at 

imposing the ordinance requirements and look at the high-strength surcharge rates; it is a significantly higher cost to the 

distillery. Buck Sweeney said he has been working with the City to find solutions. He said that if a solution is found so that 

the Wastewater Plant can take the waste without upset then he feels that the distillery would have to go to the Council from a 

policy point of view to see if it can be done, could the City give them a rate that would allow them to be competitive in the 

marketplace. Jim Smith presented the procedure of the 2017 water usage. He then explained the distillation system.  Smith 

then presented what is being proposed to allow the distillery to discharge into the City’s system. Kolb questioned metering it 

on the discharge. Pinion said that they are talking about using a metering pump so that it is a constant low-flow out of the 

facility. He asked if there was anything as far as flow proportion and sampling and if they will be pacing that. Smith said that 

he felt it would be easy to periodically sample the tank. Smith said that it is a refrigerated sampler that can be based on flow 

or time. Plautz asked if this would satisfy Peterson’s concerns. Peterson said that nothing has been discussed about money. 

Sweeney said that the money issue would really be up to the Council. Peterson said that it is in black and white in the 

ordinance. Sweeney said that it would be a variance to the ordinance. Peterson said that they are asking all the residents of 

the City to significantly subsidize their business. Kolb understands that the distillery would be paying the higher rates, but 

only for the higher test discharge. Geick asked Sweeney if they are proposing any kind of rate. It was stated that it cost 

approximately $575 to haul off-site. Pinion said that the City’s rate is based on gross water consumption, not net water 

discharge, so there is no credit built-in for the deduct meter that is being proposed. Pinion said that it is part of the Utility 

budget this year for a rate study, which will take 4 or 5 months to complete. Therefore, based on the currently surcharge 

rates, there is a difference, it is higher trucking off-site, more convenient obviously to discharge locally, but he doesn’t know 

how the new numbers will compare to what the current surcharge rates are. Geick asked Sweeney if he was agreeable to the 

concept of what he was talking about would be something that could be considered in the proposed rate study. Sweeney said 

that he wouldn’t have a problem looking at it from a rate study point of view. He said that he thinks metering itself is a lot 

less controversial, it feels that it is fair. Pinion that this is discussion item and no action can take place to, but asked when 

they wanted to start discharging to the sewer. Sweeney said they would like to get the deducts approved so that they are not 

paying high strength waste, regardless of where they are taking it, because they should be paying high-strength waste 

because they are hauling it. Pinion said currently they are hauling off-site, but are paying for gross water consumption on the 

sewer side. Therefore, the first thing to do is to install the right meters, meter them the right way, and that becomes a straight 

forward deduct. He said that the distillery would continue it haul it off-site, because the City is not prepared to make any 

special rate without crunching the numbers. Sweeney said that they would like to have a seat at the table for the proposed 

rate study. After a lengthy discussion, the distillery has agreed to install a deduct meter, and will give Peterson the amount of 

alcohol barreled. Attorney Truman said that she would meet with Sweeney to draft up so everything is clear with no 

confusion as to what is going to be done.   

 

f. Review and approval of monthly Billing Adjustments/Credits for Sewer and Water Customers for June 2018 – It was moved 

by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to approve the monthly billing adjustments/credits for Sewer and Water customers for June 

2018 as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Reports 

a. Utility Superintendent’s Report – Peterson said that his crew put together a temporary system that is the best while under 

construction. He said construction should be done in November. He said he received two proposals for the rate study and 

will be moving forward. 

 

b. Street Superintendent’s Report – Gilman said that Dave Smith started employment on July 9th. Gilman presented is June 

activity report. He said that all parking lots were finished before the parade. 

 

c. Police Chief’s Report – Schauf said that he is working on filling three vacancies. He said the parade went well with no 

problems.  

 

d.  Fire Chief’s Report – Chief Stieve said there the department has three openings to fill. He said there has been one 

retirement, two resignations. As part of the Fire Department Operations Study, the work on the SOG continues.  

 

ADJOURNMENT – Kolb moved, Plautz seconded to adjourn at 2:54 p.m. Motion carried.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Phil Wedekind, Chairman 
 



P:\Public Works\Agendas\2018\08-27-18 Background Memo.doc 

MEMORANDUM City of Baraboo 
 

Date: August 22, 2018 

To: Public Safety Committee 

From: Tom Pinion 

Re: Background for August 27th mtg. @ 1:00 pm – Municipal Building (Committee Room)  
 

New Business: 

 

Items A, B, & C.  The resident at 715 Walnut Street has expressed concern about the one parking stall in front of 

her home.  It is used often and when it is occupied, it limits her ability to safely back out of her driveway.  The 

geometry of the intersection at Walnut & Parkway also presents a challenge.  The Police Chief and I concur that the 

best solution is to eliminate that parking stall to improve overall safety. 

 

Blackhawk Manor has expressed concern about their residents parking on the west side of Moore Street near the 

“bump out” for their mailbox.  This area is also used as a bus stop and parked cars prevent the bus from pulling up 

to the curb so it must “double park” to load and unload students.  The Police Chief and I concur that the best 

solution is to eliminate parking in that vicinity to improve overall safety. 

 

The on-street parking currently allowed on Summit Street presents a real challenge for street maintenance and 

especially snow plowing.  This area is used by high school students and the narrow roadway is a challenge during 

the time Alternate Side Parking restrictions and even further constricted when cars park on both side of the street.  

Given the geometry of the curved intersection of Summit & 10th Ave, the best solution is to eliminate parking on 

both side of the street from the alley north to 10th Ave. 

 
7.02    OFFICIAL TRAFFIC MAP AND CONTROL DEVICES; PROHIBITED SIGNS, SIGNALS  AND MARKERS.  

 

(2) OFFICIAL TRAFFIC MAP. 

 

(a) Official Traffic Map Established. There is hereby established for the City of Baraboo an Official Traffic Map 

dated June l, 1986, on which is Indicated as of said date all existing stop signs; arterial intersections; yield 

signs; no parking areas; no stopping, standing or parking areas; restricted parking areas; handicap parking  

areas; and all other restrictions or limitations contained in this chapter and which the laws of the State of 

Wisconsin require the erection or use of official traffic control devices to enforce such restrictions or 

limitations.  All such restrictions and limitations set forth on said Official Traffic Map are hereby adopted by 

reference. 

 

Item D.  Included in the packet is a draft Agreement that will allow the Delton Fire Dept to use the City’s 

Container Based (live-fire) Training Prop.  The Fire Chief can provide additional background as necessary. 

 

Item E.  Please see the information from the City Attorney that is included in the packet.   

 

Item F.  Brothers on Oak has applied again this year for a Special Event Permit for their “Foo Fest” on September 

8th.  This event is a fundraiser for the Baraboo Fire Fighters Association.  Since the request involves the closure of 

Oak Street between 2nd & 3rd, our ordinance requires approval by the Public Safety Committee.  The application 

form should be self-explanatory and both Chiefs can address any issues or concerns they may have.   

 

Item G.  Driftless Glen has worked with City Staff on the attached Agreement.  This Agreement does not authorize 

any discharge of high strength waste yet, but it does provide a method for DG to be billed only for the wastewater 

that is discharged to the sanitary sewer rather than the gross volume of water that is used at the facility.  

Accordingly, DG will receive a “credit” of sorts for water that is used by the chiller, bottled as spirits, and hauled 

off-site for disposal since it is not discharged to the sanitary sewer.    This Agreement addresses only part of DG’s 

concern.  It continues to be their position that they are pre-treating their wastewater to a level than can be “handled” 

by our WWTP and believe they should be given permission to discharge to the sewer system and negotiate a special 



P:\Public Works\Agendas\2018\08-27-18 Background Memo.doc 

rate, accordingly.  Since a Sanitary Sewer Rate Study was recently commissioned, Staff is recommending no 

further action until that Study is complete. 

 

Item H.  At the June 11th meeting, Tony presented the Committee with the two bids that were received.  Since the 

original bid was over budget, we have worked with the bidders and they have provided some value engineering 

suggestions to reduce the cost of the project.  Cleary Building Corp has submitted the attached Proposal for the 

City’s consideration with a price of $60,531.  The budgeted amount was $60,000 but with your approval, we will 

transfer $531 to cover the difference. 

 

Item I.  This is the standing agenda item to review and approve monthly utility billing adjustments.  The 

adjustments for July is included in the packet. 

 

 

See you at the new Municipal Bldg (101 South Blvd) in the Council Chambers at 1:00 PM on Monday!    



!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

! !

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

"# "#

"#

"#

"#

"#

"#

"#

"#
"#"#

"#

%$%$%$%$%$%$%$

%$
%$

%$

%$

%$

%$ %$

%$

%$

%$

%$ %$

%$

%$%$

%$

%$

%$

H
4

9
H

4
J

8

A
I

@
5

8
F

F
M

G
H

6
C

B
B

=8
F

7

AI@58FFM GH

6
C

A
A

8
F

6
8

4
J

8

@4B;8 6H

<
=H

6
<

6
C

6
?

D
4

H
8

G
H

8
@

@
=G

4
J

8

J
=B

8
G

H

K
4

@
7

C
G

H

64B8D4 GH

<C@@M'

KCC7

GH

A4FH=B

8@A GH

GH

K
4

@
B

I
H

G
H

6@=BHCB

GEI4F8

J=6HCF=4 6=F

GH< --

GH

GH

GH

C4? GH

A4D@8

6<8GHBIH

@C6IGH

HC BCFH< 9F887CA

GH< +-0

K
4

@
G

H
B

I
H

64FD8BH8F GH<4H6<8FM F7

?
F

=G
H

4
6

H

1H< 4J8

2H< 4J8

0H< 4J8

/H< 4J8

.H< 4J8

-F7 4J8

,B7 4J8

2H< 4J8

1H< 4J8

0H< 4J8

/H< 4J8

.H< 4J8

D
4

F
?

G
H

F
=7

;
8

G
H

NCC @B

6
8

B
H

G
H

8
F

,B7 4J8

-F7 4J8

G
I

A
A

=H
G

H

G
H

G
H

K
8

F
6

<
G

H

5
F

C
4

7
K

4
M

?
C

6
<

G
H

K
=@

@
C

K
G

H

1H< GH

2H< GH

0H< GH

/H< GH

.H< GH

-F7 GH

,B7 GH

@=BB GH

6
8

7
4

F
G

H

+GH 4J8 +GH GH

5
=

G
H

G
H

DF4=F=8

547;8F

@MBB 4J8

6
4

G
8

G
H

G
M

6
4

A
C

F
8

D
=B

8
G

H

H
<

C
A

4
G

G
H

4
B

7
F

C
G

H

@MBB 4J8

K4H8F GH

J
=

B
8

G
H

C
4

?

@MBB GH

5@4?8 GH

GCIH< GH

A4D@8 GH

4
G

<

=B
7

I
G

H
F

=4
@

6
H

9
F

C
B

H
G

H

68BH8F

K=H<'

=B;HCB

A4B6<8GH8F GH

8
9

9
=B

;
8

F
F

7

;
F

C
J

8
G

H

6
<

8
F

F
M

@
4

B
8

-F7 GH

>
8

9
9

8
F

G
C

B
G

H

K
4

G
<

=B
;

H
C

B
4

J
8

@
=B

6
C

@
B

4
J

8

F
=4

-F7 GH

.H< GH
.H< GH

-F7 GH

,B7 GH

/H< GH

8
@

=N
4

5
8

H
<

G
H

5
4

F
?

8
F

G
H

6
4

A
D

G
H

K
<

8
8

@
8

F
G

H 1H< GH

0H< GH

2H< GHGH< --

GH< --

,B7 GH

9=FGH GHH
C

GCIH<

DCHH8F GH

6@4F? GH

5
F

=4
F

G
H

F=J8F6F8GH 7F

@=H6<9=8@7

@B

6F8GHJ=8K 7FJ
=6

ACIB7 GH

K
4

G
<

=B
;

H
C

B
4

J
8

9@CF8B68 GHF
8

A
=B

;
H

C
B

G
H

@
@

A
=

8
4

G
H

G
H

F
C

G
4

@
=B

8
G

H

64ADIG

J=8K 7F

I
G

<
+

,

G
H

<
-
-

>
4

3H< 4J8

+*H< 4J8+*H< 4J8

3H< 4J8

5
8

F
?

@
8

M
5

@
J

7

G
I

A
A

=H
G

H

<
=@

@
G

H 3H< GH

+*H< GH

58F?@8M 5@J7

3H< GH 3H< GH

+*H< GH

8
B

G
F

F
K

4

FCIB7<CIG8 6H

6
4

G
8

G
H

@
=G

4
6

H

A
8

F
6

8
D

?
K

M

G
H

<
+
-

0

ITEM AITEM B

ITEM C





AGREEMENT THE FOR USE OF CITY OF BARABOO’S CONTAINER BASED TRAINING PROP
DRAFT 8-16-18

THIS AGREEMENT FOR THE USE OF THE CITY OF BARABOO’S CONTAINER BASED TRAINING PROP
(“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the City of Baraboo, with a mailing address of 101 South Blvd.,
Baraboo, WI 53913, (“City”), and the Delton Fire and Ambulance Commission, comprised of the Village of Lake
Delton and the Town of Delton, with a mailing address of 45 Miller Drive, Baraboo, WI 53913 (“DFAC”).
Baraboo and DFAC may be jointly referred to herein as the “Parties.”

WHEREAS the City’s Fire Department (“BFD”) has a Container Based Training Prop (“CBTP”) that is
used by the BFD for training purposes; and

WHEREAS, the DFAC’s Fire Department (“DFD”) would like to use the CBTP for training purposes; and

WHEREAS, in the spirit of cooperation and having the best trained fire personnel possible in the
Baraboo/Delton area, the City will allow the DFD use of the CBTP as described further herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED BETWEEEN THE PARTIES AS FOLLOWS:

1. Term. The BFD will make available to the DFD, and any trained and supervised employee or
volunteer thereto, the CBTP on the following mutually agreed upon dates and times: ___________________.

2. Costs. There will be no cost to the DFD or DFAC for the DFD’s use of the CBTP except as
follows: due to the nature of live fire training, materials such as wood lumber, drywall and the like that is
inside of the CBTP will become damaged; these materials shall be removed and replaced by DFD with materials
selected by the BFD that are comparable to the materials that were damaged within thirty (30) calendar day’s
use of the CBTP, with said removal and replacement occurring on a date and time that is mutually agreed upon
by the BFD Chief and DFD Chief.

3. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time with or without cause by the
BFD Chief notifying the DFD Chief of said termination, which may be communicated in writing or verbally.
Further, during the use of the CBTP by the DFD, at least one BFD employee will be on site at all times to
supervise the use of the CBTP. If at any time the BFD employee reasonably believes the use of the CBTP should
be discontinued for any reason by the DFD, the BFD employee will inform the DFD employees on site to cease
use of the CBTP and the DFD employees will immediately comply.

4. Insurance. The DFD will maintain adequate insurance for the duration of the term of this
Agreement, including, if required by law, Worker’s Compensation Insurance. Any damage to or loss of the
City’s equipment or property that is caused by the DFD or an employee, volunteer or agent thereof, during the
term of this Agreement, with the exception described in Paragraph 2, above, shall be paid for by the DFAC
within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of the invoice sent by the City to DFAC.

5. Legal Action. The Parties agrees that if legal action is brought under this Agreement, exclusive
venue shall lie in Sauk County, Wisconsin. The Parties further agree to attempt to resolve any disagreement
resulting from this Agreement amongst themselves prior to taking any form of legal action.

6. Severability. In case one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be for
any reason held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, such



invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement shall be
construed as is such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.

7. Amendments. This Agreement may not be modified or assigned without the prior written
consent of the Parties.

8. Effective Date. Effective date of this Agreement shall be as of the date of final execution
hereto.

EXECUTED by the City of Baraboo and Delton Fire Department, with each respective governmental entity
acting by and through its duly authorized officials on the date herein below specified.

DELTON FIRE AND AMBULANCE COMMISSION

Witness Signature: ______________________ By _________________________________________
Witness Print: __________________________ Print: _______________________________________

Title: _______________________________________
Date: _______________________________________

Witness Signature: ______________________ By _________________________________________
Witness Print: __________________________ Print: _______________________________________

Title: _______________________________________
Date: _______________________________________

CITY OF BARABOO

Witness Signature: ______________________ By _________________________________________
Witness Print: __________________________ Mike Palm, Mayor

Date: _______________________________________

Witness Signature: ______________________ By _________________________________________
Witness Print: __________________________ Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

Date: _______________________________________

Approved as to Form:
Emily Truman, Baraboo City Attorney



 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE ITEM SUMMARY 

August 22, 2018 
 
 

ITEM: REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION TO THE COMMON COUNCIL TO AMEND THE CITY’S CURRENT 
NOISE ORDINANCE.   

 
CITY’S LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:   
 
A first draft of the proposed amendment to the ordinance was presented to the Public Safety Committee 
on July 28, 2018.  A request was made by the Committee for the City Attorney to reach out to the Sauk 
County Fairgrounds to see if they had any thoughts on the changes to the ordinance.   
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
After meeting with representatives from the Sauk County Fairgrounds, the City Attorney and Police Chief 
are suggesting the ordinance be amended to allow the decision to issue permit requests be made by the 
Police Department, that one Noise Permit may cover multiple days (e.g., the entire length of the fair), and 
that there be no codified time frame for when a noise permit cannot be issued.  
 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S NOISE ORDINANCE 
 
9.06 LOUD AND UNNECESSARY NOISE PROHIBITED.    

 
(1) GENERALLY. No person shall make or cause to be made any unreasonably loud, disturbing, or 

un-necessary sounds or noises such as may tend to annoy or unreasonably disturb a person 
of ordinary sensibilities in or about any public street, alley, or park, or any private residential 
property. (2130 12/09/03) 

 
(2) PUBLIC ADDRESS SYSTEMS AND AMPLIFIERS.  No person shall use or operate any public 

address system, amplifier, or device which increases the volume of voice, music, or other 
sounds tending to un-reasonably disturb the public peace or the quiet and peacefulness of 
persons in the surrounding neighbor-hoods. (2130 12/09/03) 

 
(3) CONSTRUCTION AND MACHINERY NOISE. (2450 09/27/2016) Between the hours of 10:00 

P.M. and 6:30 A.M. no person shall do construction work or operate any chain saw, lawn 
mower or any other loud machinery of a similar nature. This subsection shall not apply to 
equipment or machinery being used for snow removal purposes, for Public Works or Utilities 
maintenance and service projects, or for emergency removal of debris caused by accident, 
weather conditions or other Act of God.  

 
(4)    EXCEPTIONS. 
 

(a) The Baraboo Country Club is granted an exception to subsection (3) and allowed to 
operate lawn mowing equipment for the purpose of golf course maintenance beginning 
at 5:30 a.m. from May 1st until September 30th of each year. (2442 05/24/16) 

 
(b) A Noise Permit for an exception to this ordinance may be granted by the Police 

Department upon written request provided to the Police Chief or designee at least 
fourteen days prior to the event that will cause noise.  One Noise Permit may be granted 



for multiple days.  The Police Chief or designee shall consider granting the Noise Permit 
based on the following: 

 
i. The location of the noise  

ii. The purpose for the noise 
iii. Length of time the noise will be occurring 
iv. How many people the noise will impact 
v. Whether the public health, safety, or welfare is harmed 

vi. Whether the noise impact outweighs the benefit to the public 
  

(c) The City of Baraboo is exempt from requiring a Noise Permit as required by subsection 
(b), above. 

 
  

 



412	oak	street,	baraboo	wi	53913

september	8th,	2018 200	pm 1030	pm

200pm	to	1030pm

FOO	FEST

fundraiser	for	the	Baraboo	fire	dept

1000

brothers	on	oak	grs	mgt	llc

grant	slayton
412	oak	street baraboo	wi	53913

6089638196 6083568000 gregwiswoods@hotmail.com

greg	slayton
412	oak	street baraboo	wi	53913

6089638196 gregwiswoods@hotmail.com

Special	Event	20180000077

✔
✔

✔



400	block	oak	street

1
0

no

0

✔

0



✔

150.00

07/30/2018

07/30/2018
Per the Public Safety, all music done by 10:00 pm.
10:30 the roadway is clear

07/30/2018

07/30/2018

My approval is contingent upon Public Safety
Committee Review & Approval at their Aug 27th
Meeting.





AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BARABOO AND DRIFTLESS GLEN DISTILLERY 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the City of Baraboo, a Wisconsin municipal 

corporation with a mailing address of 101 South Blvd., Baraboo, WI 53913 (“City”) and Driftless Glen 

Distillery, LLC, a foreign limited liability company with a mailing address of 300 Water Street, Baraboo, 

WI 53913 (“Distillery”).  The City and the Distillery may be jointly referred to herein as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Distillery consists of a restaurant, tasting room and spirits distillery (“Services”) 

located in the City of Baraboo, Wisconsin; and  

WHEREAS, to conduct its business, the Distillery uses water and sewer services provided by 

the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that as part of the Services, some of the City’s water 

that goes into the Distillery will not later be discharged into the City’s sewer and as such, the Distillery 

is not required to pay a sewer use charge for water  that it does not actually discharge to the sanitary 

sewer system; and 

WHEREAS, the Distillery has agreed to install a metering device, provided by the City, and 

other methods in order to assist in accurately tracking the true amount of water the Distillery uses 

that is not discharged to the City’s sanitary sewer system; and 

WHEREAS, upon the installation of said metering device and additional proof provided to the 

City by the Distillery of the amount of water that is barreled and/or hauled away from the Distillery, 

the City will adjust the Distillery’s sewer bill to accurately reflect the true amount of sewer services 

used by the Distillery. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual consideration contained herein, the Parties agree as 

follows: 

TERMS 

1. Term.  This Agreement shall become effective on the date executed by all parties and 

shall remain in effect for the duration of the operation of the Distillery. 

 

2. City’s Responsibility.  The City agrees to provide to the Distillery, within two (2) 

business days of the Distillery’s request, a meter that will accurately track the volume of water that 

is used in the chiller system and does not enter the sanitary sewer system.  The City further agrees to 

adjust the Distillery’s sewer bill to accurately reflect the true volume of wastewater discharged to the 

City’s sanitary sewer system by the Distillery, conditioned upon the Distillery’s full and timely 

compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 

3. Distillery’s Responsibility.  In order for the Distillery to be eligible for any deductions 

in the amount of their sewer use charge, the Distillery understands it must fully and timely comply 

with the following:  



a. The Distillery must install, at the Distillery’s cost, a metering device provided by the 

City pursuant to the specifications of the City, and to pay for any repairs to or 

replacements of the metering device as necessary unless caused by a defect of the 

device.  Within three (3) business days of the completed installation, the Distillery 

must contact Wade Peterson, Utility Superintendent for the City of Baraboo, and 

allow Superintendent Peterson access to the Distillery to inspect the installation.  If 

changes to the installation need to be made, Superintendent Peterson will inform the 

Distillery at the time of inspection.  The Distillery must ensure, to the best of the 

Distillery’s ability that the meter is working property for the duration of the 

Agreement and, in the event the Distillery reasonably believes the meter is no longer 

working properly, the Distillery must immediately notify Superintendent Peterson. 

 

b. The Distillery must provide to Superintendent Peterson true copies of documentation 

indicating the volume of spirits produced, in gallons, that have been bottled at the 

Distillery as well as the volume of waste water, in gallons, that have been hauled away 

from the Distillery in tankers.  This information must be provided to Superintendent 

Peterson, or his designee, by email on or shortly before March 15, June 15, September 

15 and December 15 of each year.  The information must be for the three full calendar 

months preceding the information due date.  E.g., the information provided to 

Superintendent Peterson on or before March 15 must be for the full months of 

December, January and February.   

 

c.  The Distillery must allow the City, and any employee or agent thereof, access to the 

metering device during normal Distillery business hours to ensure ongoing 

compliance with the City’s specifications and to verify the accuracy of the information 

produced by the metering device.   

 

4. Default.  Failure of the Distillery to timely comply with any of the requirements listed 

in Paragraph 3(a) – (c), above, will result in the Distillery not receiving a deduction in its sewer bill for 

the period in question.  No exceptions shall be made by the City, such as retroactive deductions based 

on untimely information provided to the City unless approved by the City Council.  Rectification shall 

require the Distillery coming into full compliance with all requirements contained herein and 

confirmation of said compliance in writing by Superintendent Peterson.   

5. Notice.  Any notices required or permitted to be given per this Agreement shall be 
given in writing and shall be delivered (a) in person, or (b) by certified mail, postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, or (c) as otherwise specified herein, and such notices shall be addressed as 
follows:  

To the City: Wade Peterson, Utility Superintendent 
City Services Center 

      450 Roundhouse Court 
      Baraboo, WI 53913 
      wpeterson@cityofbaraboo.com 



 
  With a Copy to:  City of Baraboo 
      Attn: City Attorney 
      101 South Blvd. 
      Baraboo, WI 53913 
 
 
  To the Distillery:  Renee Bemis 
      300 Water Street 
      Baraboo, WI  53913 
 
  With a Copy to:  Attorney Charles V. Sweeney  
      Axley Brynelson, LLP 
      P. O. Box 1767 
      Madison, WI  53701-1767 
      csweeney@axley.com 
  

6. Assignment.  This Agreement may not be assigned by the Distillery, in whole or in 
part, without written consent of the City. 

7. Compliance with Law.  Nothing contained herein shall be interpreted to mean that 
the Distillery may fail to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, including the Baraboo 
Municipal Code, and all rules and requirements contained therein. 

8. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made 
in, and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin. Any lawsuit 
related to or arising out of disputes under this Agreement shall be commenced and tried in the 
circuit court of Sauk County, Wisconsin, and the Parties submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the 
circuit court for such lawsuits. 

9. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended at any time upon mutual written 
consent of the Parties. 

 
10. Counterparts.  This Agreement has been executed in several counterparts, each of 

which shall be taken to be an original, and all collectively but one instrument. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 
proper officers. 

 
(SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRIFTLESS GLEN DISTILLERY 
 

Witness Signature: ___________________________ By: ________________________________ 
 
Witness Print: _______________________________ Print:  ________________________________ 
 
       Title:  ________________________________  
 
       Date: ________________________________ 
 
Witness Signature: ___________________________ By: ________________________________ 
 
Witness Print: _______________________________ Print:  ________________________________ 
 
       Title:  ________________________________ 
 
       Date:   ________________________________ 

 
 
 

CITY OF BARABOO 
 
Witness Signature: ___________________________ By: ________________________________ 
        Mike Palm, Mayor 
Witness Print: _______________________________   
        

Date: ________________________________ 
 
Witness Signature: ___________________________ By: ________________________________ 

Brenda Zeman, City Clerk 
Witness Print: _______________________________   
        

Date: ________________________________ 
 

Approved as to Form: 

_________________________ 
Emily Truman, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 
 

P:\Administration\Attorney\Agreements and Contracts\Driftless Glen Distillery Agreement – FINAL 8-17-18.docx 



Note: These colors are as close to the actual colors as permitted by printing. Actual metal samples must be reviewed with your Sales 
Specialist. Colors vary depending upon position and angles.

South End Wall 1 on Building 1

Elevations for Building 1

P.O Box 930220

Phone: (608) 845-9700
Verona, WI 53593-0220

Fax: (608) 845-7070

GILMAN , TONY 
8/9/2018

Doc ID: 4195620180809144124

Elevations & Floor Plan

v1.0 2 of 5



Note: These colors are as close to the actual colors as permitted by printing. Actual metal samples must be reviewed with your Sales 
Specialist. Colors vary depending upon position and angles.

North End Wall 2 on Building 1

Note: These colors are as close to the actual colors as permitted by printing. Actual metal samples must be reviewed with your Sales 
Specialist. Colors vary depending upon position and angles.

West Side Wall 1 on Building 1

P.O Box 930220

Phone: (608) 845-9700
Verona, WI 53593-0220

Fax: (608) 845-7070

GILMAN , TONY 
8/9/2018

Doc ID: 4195620180809144124

Elevations & Floor Plan

v1.0 3 of 5



Note: These colors are as close to the actual colors as permitted by printing. Actual metal samples must be reviewed with your Sales 
Specialist. Colors vary depending upon position and angles.

East Side Wall 2 on Building 1

P.O Box 930220

Phone: (608) 845-9700
Verona, WI 53593-0220

Fax: (608) 845-7070

GILMAN , TONY 
8/9/2018

Doc ID: 4195620180809144124

Elevations & Floor Plan

v1.0 4 of 5



Floor Plan

P.O Box 930220

Phone: (608) 845-9700
Verona, WI 53593-0220

Fax: (608) 845-7070

GILMAN , TONY 
8/9/2018

Doc ID: 4195620180809144124

Elevations & Floor Plan

v1.0 5 of 5



Client Proposal - Erected
Cleary Buildings Project Estimate

Project Name: GILMAN , TONY  
Site Address: 450 ROUNDHOUSE CT. BARABOO, WISCONSIN 53913
Email: tgilman@cityofbaraboo.com
Home Phone: (608) 355-2735

Commercial 48' 0"x100' 0"x17' 8" with 16' 4" truss clearance from 100'-0" mark. (10 Bays at 10' o.c.)

Details:
Truss (Standard Lower Chord) with 4/12 roof pitch.

Type Foundation: In Ground

Default Ceiling Design: Not Designed to Support a Ceiling

Concrete Floor: No

Purlin Blocking: Both Endwalls are purlin blocked

30 psf Ground Snow Load with 2"x4" Continuous 2' 0" inch on center purlins.

Exterior Finishes:
Roof/Siding: Grand Rib 3 Plus

- Lifetime Film Integrity Warranty, 35 Year Fade and Chalk Warranty, and G-90 Galvanizing Up to 1.0 ounce of Zinc 
Protection.

Accessories:
Standard Ridge Cap.
Marco LP2 Weather-Tite Ridge Vent “Low Profile” (Add ventilation to ridge).
Side Wall Overhang: 18" Aluminum soffit (Sidewall) with vented soffit on S1 & S2

Bird Screening for the interior to prevent birds from nesting in overhang.
End Wall Overhang: None on E1 & E2

(3) - Overhead frame out.  Size: 14' 0" Width x 14' 0" Height (Door not included unless shown in Additional Building 
Components)

8/9/2018
GILMAN , TONY 

Doc ID: 4195620180809144042

Email: MHirssig@clearybuilding.com
Phone Number: (608) 845-9700

MARK HIRSSIG

v6/11
1 of 3



(2) - Plyco Series 20 Blocked 3'-0"x6'-8" with 2x6 frame
(1) - Plyco Series 20 Blocked 3'-0"x6'-8" with 2x6 frame
(1) - Plyco Series 20 Blocked 3'-0"x6'-8" with 2x6 frame

Manually Priced Items
Code Name
13.3 45' wide building - Overhead Frame Out in the Sidewall: 18' wide or Less

Additional Building Components
Overhead Doors

3-14 x 14  commercial  C-2411 Doors - no openers  

Responsibilities

Site
If Seller is unable to proceed with normal digging procedures (concrete, rocks, etc.), then the extra expense resulting 
from such condition(s) will be the obligation of the Purchaser and shall be paid to Seller upon request.

Access must be provided for unloading materials to the building material placement area which must be within 75 feet 
of the building pad – If greater than 75 feet, additional charges will be applied

Permit
Purchaser shall timely obtain at Purchaser’s cost all necessary and required permits and licenses for the  construction 
contemplated by this Agreement.

Seller will provide sanitary facilities.
Seller to pile scrap for Purchaser use or disposal.  

Purchaser will provide electric power during construction.  
Temporary Services:

• Includes material, labor, delivery, warranties and builder's risk insurance.
• Please note this price is subject to change without notice after 8/31/2018.

Total Building Proposal Investment: $60,531

Dumpster Option - NOT included in the project investment price above
Seller to place scrap in the dumpster and remove from site (Price subject to change based upon delivery 
and travel charges for the dumpster)

$800

Note: If Dumpster Option is not selected, Seller will pile scraps and packaging near building for Purchaser use or disposal.

8/9/2018
GILMAN , TONY 

Doc ID: 4195620180809144042

Email: MHirssig@clearybuilding.com
Phone Number: (608) 845-9700

MARK HIRSSIG

v6/11
2 of 3







Date: August 06, 2018

Sold-To ("Purchaser"): Document: 150611
Tel: 608-393-9945

Tony Gilman Fax: 608-356-0518
City of Baraboo Public Works Email: tgilman@cityofbaraboo.com
450 Roundhouse Court
Baraboo, WI 53913

Customer #: H701711
Preferred: Email

Compass Minerals America Inc. (Seller) / Quotation for bulk de-icing salt

Quantity
(TN)

Delivery Location Price Per Ton (USD)

1,649 City of Baraboo
407 Briar
Baraboo, WI 53913
Destination #: H614503
Delivery Lead Time: 7 days

93.20 Deliver Depot: Prairie Du Chien
Product: BULK COARSE LA - HWY
(7608)
Mode of Transport: DUMP (END OR
BOTTOM)
Distance: 95.3 Miles

1 City of Baraboo-Sauk Co. Shed Baraboo
620 St Rd 136
Sauk Co. Shed

93.20 Deliver Depot: Prairie Du Chien
Product: BULK COARSE LA - HWY
(7608)
Mode of Transport: DUMP (END OR

*Purchase agreement subject to prior sale. MINIMUM PURCHASE WILL BE ENFORCED.

The Customer commits to purchase 80% of the quantity shown and to commence receiving deliveries no later than
December 31. Seller may decline any orders for any reason impacting its ability to ship product, including (but not
limited to) the availability of product, conditions at the terminal or production facilities, or weather conditions. The
Customer will be invoiced for any tons not taken up to the 80% (unless Seller has declined to deliver those tons).

Price(s) effective through Sunday, 31 Mar 2019

Purchaser agrees to pay the seller for such salt as and when delivered, in accordance with the price and
payment terms stated above and on the reverse side of this form (unless inconsistent with the terms on this
page).

Terms are NET 30 days from shipment with approved credit.

* This proposal is open for acceptance for 20 days following date of issue, and supersedes any and all
previous proposals and or contracts. Proposal must be signed indicating acceptance to be valid.

* Delivered price(s) via dump and based on full truck load quantities.
* Seller does not commit to a specific delivery lead time. Any lead time specified above is an estimated target only.
* Product is for bulk end use only and is not intended for blending and packaging without prior consent.
* Applicable taxes extra
* Compass Minerals America Inc. has no obligation to store salt after the Term, but if it chooses to make storage available it will
be for a fee of $5 per month per ton.

Thank you for the opportunity to quote on your bulk de-icing salt needs. Accepted By;

Signature:

Title:

Sean Lierz Name:

Senior Sales Manager 1-800-323-1641 x9330
Date:

Compass Minerals America Inc.

Please sign and return by fax to 913-338-7945 or e-mail highwaygroup@compassminerals.com or by mail

Order placement and inquiries Monday through Friday - 7:00 am to 5:00 pm.

Page 1 of 3

9900 W. 109th Street, Suite 600, Overland Park, KS 66210



Date: August 06, 2018

Sold-To ("Purchaser"): Document: 150611
Tel: 608-393-9945

Tony Gilman Fax: 608-356-0518
City of Baraboo Public Works Email: tgilman@cityofbaraboo.com
450 Roundhouse Court
Baraboo, WI 53913

Customer #: H701711
Preferred: Email

Compass Minerals America Inc. (Seller) / Quotation for bulk de-icing salt

Quantity
(TN)

Delivery Location Price Per Ton (USD)

Baraboo, WI 53913
Destination #: H960617
Delivery Lead Time: 7 days

BOTTOM)
Distance: 95.3 Miles

*Purchase agreement subject to prior sale. MINIMUM PURCHASE WILL BE ENFORCED.

The Customer commits to purchase 80% of the quantity shown and to commence receiving deliveries no later than
December 31. Seller may decline any orders for any reason impacting its ability to ship product, including (but not
limited to) the availability of product, conditions at the terminal or production facilities, or weather conditions. The
Customer will be invoiced for any tons not taken up to the 80% (unless Seller has declined to deliver those tons).

Price(s) effective through Sunday, 31 Mar 2019

Purchaser agrees to pay the seller for such salt as and when delivered, in accordance with the price and
payment terms stated above and on the reverse side of this form (unless inconsistent with the terms on this
page).

Terms are NET 30 days from shipment with approved credit.

* This proposal is open for acceptance for 20 days following date of issue, and supersedes any and all
previous proposals and or contracts. Proposal must be signed indicating acceptance to be valid.

* Delivered price(s) via dump and based on full truck load quantities.
* Seller does not commit to a specific delivery lead time. Any lead time specified above is an estimated target only.
* Product is for bulk end use only and is not intended for blending and packaging without prior consent.
* Applicable taxes extra
* Compass Minerals America Inc. has no obligation to store salt after the Term, but if it chooses to make storage available it will
be for a fee of $5 per month per ton.

Thank you for the opportunity to quote on your bulk de-icing salt needs. Accepted By;

Signature:

Title:

Sean Lierz Name:

Senior Sales Manager 1-800-323-1641 x9330
Date:

Compass Minerals America Inc.

Please sign and return by fax to 913-338-7945 or e-mail highwaygroup@compassminerals.com or by mail

Order placement and inquiries Monday through Friday - 7:00 am to 5:00 pm.

Page 2 of 3

9900 W. 109th Street, Suite 600, Overland Park, KS 66210



Terms and Conditions of Sale

1. PARTIES. “Seller” is identified in the “Remit To” section and “Buyer” in the “Sold To” section of an invoice to which these Terms and Conditions of Sale (“Agreement”) relate or are
attached.

2. OFFER. No terms in Buyer’s bid, purchase order or other form shall be binding upon Seller. Seller rejects additional/different terms in such Buyer’s documents. SELLER'S OFFER IS
EXPRESSLY LIMITED TO AND CONDITIONED UPON BUYER’S ACCEPTANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT.

3. PRICES; TAXES. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED IN THIS AGREEMENT, PRICES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE. ORDERS WILL BE INVOICED, UNLESS
OTHERWISE SPECIFIED IN THIS AGREEMENT, AT SELLER'S PRICE IN EFFECT ON THE SCHEDULED DATE OF SHIPMENT. Prices on the invoicing document are net of all
applicable discounts and promotional allowances. References to “tons” means short tons (2000 lbs.) unless otherwise specified. Any tax or other governmental charges now or hereafter
levied upon production, severance, manufacture, delivery, storage, consumption, sale, use or shipment of Products ordered or sold are not included in Seller’s price and will be charged to
and paid by Buyer.

4. CANCELLATION. Orders may be canceled by Buyer only upon (1) written or oral notice to Seller and accepted in writing by Seller and (2) payment to Seller of reasonable cancellation
charges to be solely determined by Seller. Except as otherwise agreed in writing, until the products identified in Buyer’s purchase order as accepted by Seller (“Products”) are shipped,
Seller has no obligation under any order submitted by Buyer (and may cancel the order at any time prior to shipment).

5. PAYMENT; CREDIT; PAST DUE ACCOUNTS. Buyer will make payment to Seller at the time and in the currency specified on Seller's invoicing document. Seller may, in its sole
judgment, require such other payment terms as Seller deems appropriate, including full or partial payment in advance of shipment or by letter of credit. Credit payment terms must have the
prior approval of Seller's Credit Department and must be specified in writing on Seller's invoicing document. Whenever reasonable grounds for insecurity arise with respect to due payment
from Buyer or with respect to Buyer’s financial condition generally, Seller reserves the right to stop shipment on notification to Buyer and to demand payment in advance or at the time of
delivery for future deliveries or require reasonable assurance of payment, and in the absence thereof, to cancel, without liability, the unfilled portion of Buyer’s order. A finance charge of the
lesser of 1.5% per month (18% - APR) or the highest rate permitted by law will be assessed on all past due accounts. Interest charged on a past due invoice will be assessed from the date
of the invoice. Amounts owed by Buyer with where there is no dispute will be paid without set-off for any amounts that Buyer may claim are owed by Seller. Buyer agrees to reimburse Seller
for all attorney fees and court costs in connection with default of these payment terms by Buyer.

6. DELAYS. All orders are subject to Seller's ability to make delivery at the time and in the quantities specified, and Seller shall not be liable for damages for failure to make partial or
complete shipment or for any delay in making shipments. Seller shall not be liable for delays or defaults in delivery caused by forces not reasonably within Seller’s control (including but not
limited to delays or defaults by carriers, extreme cold weather, partial or total failure of Seller’s intended production, transportation or delivery facilities, etc., floods, fires, storms, or other
acts of God, war or act of public enemy (or civil disturbance), strikes, lock-outs, shortages of labor or raw materials and supplies (including fuel), acts or omissions of Buyer, action of any
governmental authority, or other force majeure event). Buyer shall be liable for any added expenses incurred by Seller because of Buyer's delay in furnishing requested information to
Seller, delays resulting from order changes by Buyer, or delay in unloading shipments at the delivery point that are the fault of Buyer.

7. SHIPMENT COSTS/TRANSPORTATION MATTERS. Unless otherwise specified on Seller's invoicing document, all transportation charges, including, but not limited to, Seller’s and
carrier’s charges for notification prior to delivery, demurrage, switching, detention, delay in unloading, diversion, or reconsignment shall be the sole responsibility of Buyer. Buyer will
assume title and risk of loss concurrently in accordance with Seller's invoicing document. On passage of title, Buyer is then responsible for proper protection of Products and compliance
with all regulations and ordinances and will indemnify Seller against all claims for personal injuries or property damage arising from the storage, use or handling of such Products. Claims for
damage or shortage in transit must be made by Buyer against the carrier. Buyer has the responsibility to inspect shipments before or during unloading to identify any such damage or
shortage and see that appropriate notation is made on the delivery tickets or an inspection report furnished by the local agent of the carrier in order to support a claim. Upon transfer of the
Products’ risk of loss to Buyer, Buyer is solely responsible for the care, condition, damage or loss of railcars used to deliver the Products until the railcars are released empty by Buyer to the
rail carrier. Without Seller’s prior written approval, neither Buyer nor any of its employees/agents will divert or export any such railcar to anywhere outside the continental U.S. Even with
such Seller’s approval, Buyer remains fully responsible for and shall promptly reimburse Seller for all claims, losses, costs, expenses, liabilities, penalties, demands and taxes directly
caused by or incidental to such use of the railcars by Buyer.

8. WARRANTY/TIME FOR MAKING CLAIMS. Seller warrants only that it will convey good title to the Products and that, at the time of shipment, the Products will conform to the published
specifications of Seller. Seller's specifications are subject to change at any time without notice to Buyer. NO OTHER WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE BY
SELLER AND SELLER HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL SUCH OTHER WARRANTIES, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, OR NONINFRINGEMENT. Buyer must notify Seller of any claim with respect to Products, warranty, or any other claim under this Agreement within thirty (30) days of Seller’s
delivery of Products or such claim is waived. In the event of an alleged breach hereof by Seller, the sole remedy available to Buyer on account of any defect in the Products shall be limited
to the replacement of such defective Products by Seller. In the event the remedy provided herein shall be deemed to have failed its essential purpose, then Buyer shall be entitled only to a
refund of the amounts paid to Seller for such defective Products. Subject to the notification of claim provision above, no action for breach of the contract for sale or otherwise with respect to
Products will be commenced more than one (1) year after the accrual of the cause of action thereto.

9. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. SELLER’S LIABILITY FOR ANY CLAIM ARISING UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE LIMITED TO THE NET PURCHASE
PRICE ACTUALLY PAID TO SELLER FOR THE PRODUCTS INVOLVED. IN NO EVENT SHALL SELLER BE LIABLE TO BUYER OR ANY THIRD PARTY FOR ANY INDIRECT,
INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES FOR ANY CLAIM, WHETHER BASED ON WARRANTY, CONTRACT, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE)
OR OTHERWISE. Buyer assumes all risks and liability for any damage to persons or property resulting from the use of the Products delivered hereunder in manufacturing processes of
Buyer or in combination with other substances or otherwise.

10. INDEMNIFICATION. BUYER SHALL INDEMNIFY, HOLD HARMLESS AND DEFEND SELLER AND ITS AFFILIATES AND THEIR RESPECTIVE PRESENT OR FUTURE
EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, SHAREHOLDERS, INSURERS, AGENTS AND REPRESENTATIVES (COLLECTIVELY, “INDEMNIFIED PARTIES”), FROM ALL CLAIMS,
LIABILITIES, DAMAGES, SUITS, PROCEEDINGS, COSTS AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES) (COLLECTIVELY, “LOSSES”), FOR ANY DAMAGE,
INJURY, DEATH, LOSS OR DESTRUCTION OF ANY KIND RELATING TO OR ARISING OUT OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION,
LOSS OR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY OR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, BUYER OR ITS EMPLOYEES), WHETHER ARISING
AS A WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CLAIM OR UNDER THEORIES OF NEGLIGENCE, TORT, STRICT LIABILITY, INTENTIONAL MISCONDUCT, OR FAULT OF ANY KIND, AND
EVEN IF THE RESULT OR ALLEGED RESULT OF THE CONDUCT, NEGLIGENCE, ERROR, OMISSION, OR BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT OR NON-COMPLIANCE WITH
APPLICABLE LAWS BY ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTIES. THIS PROVISION SHALL SURVIVE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

11. SECURITY INTEREST. Buyer grants to Seller, and Seller retains, a security interest in all Products furnished by Seller and the proceeds thereof, until the purchase price therefor is fully
paid. Seller may file any financing statements and give notice of such security interest to third parties as Seller may determine to be necessary to perfect such security interest.

12. LEGAL COMPLIANCE. Buyer and its employees/agents (1) will comply with all applicable U.S. federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations, including the U.S. Export
Administration Regulations, the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and the U.S. Patriot Act, as amended from time to time (collectively, “Laws”); (2) will not subject Seller to any claim,
penalty or loss of benefits under the Laws; and (3) will cooperate with Seller in any audit/inspection relating to the Laws. Upon Seller’s request, Buyer will deliver a certificate to Seller in a
form provided by Seller, certifying such matters as requested by Seller, as required by the Laws, or pertaining to Buyer’s intended use of the Products as represented to Seller.

13. MISCELLANEOUS. Matters arising out of or in connection with a sale hereunder will be governed by Kansas laws without regard to conflicts of law rules, and Buyer and Seller consent
to the jurisdiction of Johnson County, Kansas courts. Buyer shall not assign this Agreement without Seller’s prior written consent. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement regarding
the subject matter hereof; no modification may be made, unless in writing and signed by the parties; and no acknowledgment/acceptance of purchase order forms containing
different/additional terms shall have force or effect. Seller’s failure to enforce any provision will not be a waiver of its right to enforce such provision or any other provision then or thereafter.
Any unenforceable provision shall be enforced to the extent it is enforceable. Any provision intended to survive shall survive this Agreement’s termination/expiration and the consummation
of the transactions contemplated hereunder.
















